Kurdistan Regional Government

Ministry of Education

Salahaddin University-Erbil

College of Education

English Department



Integrating 21 century skill in language teaching

Research project

This research is submitted to the Department of English in Partial Fulfillment of the requirement for degree of BA in (English language)

Prepared by:

Danya Omar Nuh bag

Nazdar Hussain Muhammad

Supervised by:

Asst. lecturer Muhammad Abdulwahab Aziz

Abstract

The language classroom of the 21st century goes beyond teaching and learning language skills and language areas, such as grammar and vocabulary. To satisfy the needs and overcome the challenges of the new age, one needs to master not only language skills, but also additional necessary skills which are believed to be crucial competences in the new century, known as 21st century skills, which mainly include critical thinking, collaboration, communication, and creativity. According to the National Education Association (2015), standard skills (e.g. reading or writing) are not sufficient for today's world. Students shall also become good critical thinkers, skillful communicators, creative individuals, and good collaborators. The 21st century education and curricula, as a result, increasingly aim to encompass the four skills in order to prepare pupils and students for success and better academic performance in later studies, lifelong learning, and the new-century workplace. This chapter explores the 21st century skills, or the "4C's." The skills are discussed separately by providing definitions, discussing their relevance and ways they benefit the learner. For each skill, example activities are given in order to ensure that the readers get a better understanding of what it practically means to integrate a 21st century skill in language teaching. Finally, the chapter discusses some common issues and important considerations teachers shall have when incorporating these skills in the language classroom.

Acknowledgement

The page of exhaustion was folded, thanks to God's guidance and blessings. Firstly, we would like to express our gratitude to God.& secondly ,to our esteemed teacher Mr.muhammadA.Aziz" who never hesitated to share his knowledge with us throughout our academic journey. We are also grateful to everyone who assisted us in completing this scientific research, which represents the culmination of our efforts and knowledge, to be presented to our teachers and fellow students. Therefore, it is only fitting to extend our thanks to all those who contributed, even in the smallest way, to bring this research to light. We extend our profound appreciation to our father and mother, as they provided us with support, encouragement, and appreciation. They have been a guiding light, illuminating the dark path for us to reach our goals. Lastly, I would like to thank our colleagues who have never hesitated to support us in any way.

Table of Contents

AbstractAcknowledgments	
Section one	
1.1Introduction	5
1.2Aim of this study	6
1.3Research question	6
1.4significance of this study	6
1.5Problem of research	6
Section two	7
2.1literature review	6
2.2Critical thinking in schools	7
2.2.1The benefits of critical thinking for learners	8
2.3Collaboration	9
2.3.1The benefits of collaboration for learners	10
2.4Communication and its benefits	10
2.5Creativity	11
2.5.1The benefits of creativity for learners	11
Section three	12
Practice example for four skills	12
3.1Critical thinking	12
ii. Classroom projects	12
3.2Collaboration	13
i. using four skills in a group assigned	13
ii. Making foster effect to your group	13
3.3Communication	14
3.4Creativity	15
Section four	16
Conclusion and recommendation	16

4.1Conclusion	16
4.2suggestion and recommendations	16
References	17

Section one

1.1Introduction

Today's classrooms are different from the ones the authors have in our memories. The world is changing. Today's students have changed. They seek some other kind of relationships with their teacher, classmates, and instruction materials. They learn in different ways, They aren't strange creatures. They belong to their own world and they should be taught for their own age by their own methods. So we practically brought 55 students who were in high school, we divided them for two groups, the results of the post-test showed that learning 21" century skills have a positive effect on speaking and listening skills.

They are "no longer to be seen as a passive receptacle for knowledge, but instead as an active participant in the construction of knowledge" (Nissim et al., 2016, p.29). Students today "will graduate into a world where the demands of our professional, personal, and public lives grow more complicated every year" ("Partnership for 21st century learning", para.2). Cator (2010, as cited in education week) argues that students today should evolve especial skills for being successful in a changing, interdependent, and complicated universe. Today, teaching must satisfy the requirements of a future determined by continual novelty and development. (Pearson, 2015). "Teaching and learning in the 21st century is filled with challenge and opportunity, especially when teaching students for whom English is a new language" (ibid, p.5). Nissim et al., (2016) asserts that the 21st century learning setting might be "a process-supporting system" that establishes a context in which learners learn more effective. Jacobson-Lundeberg (2016) in his study investigated students' perceptions of how intentionally taught 21st century skills have transformed their lives. Their findings have shown that 21st century skills empowered students for their future job success and also, they increase their confidence, self-efficacy, and credibility. In another study, Nissim et al., (2016) examined the influence of an innovative technology- supported learning environment on pre-service student teachers' motivation and 21st century skills. Their results revealed a significant effect in the new learning environment with 21st century skills. Regarding the importance of 21st century skills in today's students' lives, this study aims to integrate some 21st century skills and investigate their effect on teaching listening and speaking in English classrooms.

1.2 Aim of this study

The aim of this study, showing the skills in 21 century in (reading, writing, listening, speaking, Elaborating) which can help teachers, students and other researchers.

1.3Research question

- 1-what are 21 century skills?
- 2-what is the central goal of 21 century learning?
- 3-How are the skills of the 21st-century teacher different than those in time past?
- 4-how are 21century skills integrated in language classes?

1.4 significance of this study

In this changing world, Toffler (2006) asserts that "the illiterate of the 21st century will not be those who cannot read and write, but those who cannot learn, unlearn, and relearn. So The importance of this research is to show the benefits of teaching skills in 21 century and also show the problems and solving these problems to make teaching more effective and more easy for students and teachers.

1.5 problem of research

This research introducing many different problems with solving in classroom and how we make a communication, teaching approach, class size and technology integration with students for example if one of student doesn't like a subject how we are dealing with it, The 21st century is about new challenges and problems which require a new set of skills.

Section two

Literature review

2.1Literature review

In today's rapidly evolving world, the acquisition of 21-century skills has become increasingly crucial for students to thrive in their personal and professional lives. As language educators, it is our responsibility to equip students with the necessary tools to navigate this complex landscape. This literature review aims to explore the integration of 21-century skills, namely critical thinking, creativity, collaboration, and communication, within the context of language teaching. By examining existing research and scholarly works, this review seeks to shed light on the benefits, challenges, and effective strategies for incorporating these skills into language instruction. Through this Exploration, we hope to gain insights into how language educators can effectively prepare students for the demands of the 21" century and foster their holistic development. To achieve this, the review will first provide a brief overview of the current state of language teaching and the need for integrating 21-century skills. It will then delve into an in-depth analysis of each skill, examining relevant theories, empirical studies, and best practices. Finally, the review will synthesize the findings and offer recommendations for future research and pedagogical implications. By critically examining the literature in this area, this review aims to contribute to the ongoing discourse on enhancing language education to meet the demands of the 21" century." There we have the study by Karmi (2018) sheds light on the competencies and skills language learners should develop. It also explains how the teacher can go about introducing these skills and helping the learner experiment with them.

Another study by Ashraf et al. (2017) investigated the effect of integrating 21 century skills teaching into English classrooms on listening and reading comprehension skills. The study used a quantitative, experimental design with 55 participants, and the results showed that learning 21 century skills has a positive effect on speaking and listening skills.

2.2critical thinking in schools

Critical thinking in schools is considered one of the key thinking processes in today's educational systems. There are numerous definitions for critical thinking and this is due to

the fact that the skill can mean something different to different people and it is a matter of perspective. However, one definition of critical thinking is as follows: The ability to use higher-level thinking processes to search for meaning in an action or even the kinds of thinking we use to question, doubt, compare and contrast, and make judgments. (Collins (and O'Brien, 2011)

Critical thinking is the practice of problem solving, as well as working through problems, solving puzzles, and similar activities. Critical thinking helps students discover truth in assertions, especially when it comes to separating fact from opinion. With critical thinking students not only learn a set of facts or figures, they learn how to discover the facts and Figures for themselves. Critical thinking is a vital skill in the 21th century, and many Experts have spoken about its importance. Conrad Hughes, Campus and Secondary Principal of the International School of Geneva Switzerland-La Grande Boissière, delivered a keynote on critical thinking in the 21" Century during the 2020 African Education Festival. During his speech, Conrad emphasized the importance of independent thought in Today's information-saturated world. He discussed how important it is to doubt sources, scrutinize arguments, seek robust evidence to claims, and identify ideological biases behind assumptions. Conrad also highlighted the need for a strong academic program to encourage critical thinking and the importance of teaching children about critical thinking from a young age. Also Edward Glaeser, coined in 1941, offered a multifaceted description of critical thinking as follows: "(1) the tendency to think deeply about problems and topics falling within the framework of Human experiences, (2) knowledge of methods of investigation and logical deduction, (3) analysis with some skill in using these methods. In a more EFL context, Richards and Schmidt (2010) define critical thinking as: A level of reading comprehension or discussion skills when the learner is able to question and evaluate what is read or heard. In language teaching this is said to engage students more actively with materials in the target language, encourage a deeper processing of it, and show respect for students as independent thinkers. (p. 147) to apply critical thinking, you can follow these steps:

- 1-Read the article carefully and identify the main arguments and claims being made.
- 2-Evaluate the credibility of the source by checking if it's from reputable news organization or publication
- 3-Consider the author's perspective and any potential biases that may influence their writing.
- 4-Look for supporting evidence or examples provided in the article to back up the claims being made.
- 5-Compare the information in the article with other reliable sources to see if there are any inconsistencies or conflicting viewpoints .

By applying critical thinking to language learning, you can become a more discerning reader, develop a deeper understanding of the language, and strengthen your ability to express your own thoughts and opinions effectively.

2.2.1The benefits of critical thinking for learners

John Dewey in 1938AD defined it as contemplative thinking linked to the individual's ability to be active and persevere. It is cautious thinking that deals with students and analysis of beliefs and what is expected from knowledge based on a real basis supported by ability to deduce. as some experts at the invitation of American Psychological Association (APA) defined it in a study that lasted for two consecutive years (1990-1992AD), it is: a self-organized judgment that aims at interpretation, analysis, conclusion with explaining considerations related to evidence, concepts, methods, and standards on which the judgment is based, which had boon reached.

An article by British Council ("Critical Thinking and Problem Solving", n.d.) provides some potential gains students can make language from engaging in critical thinking. These include:

- 1-Critical thinking fosters learner autonomy as well as make learners more adaptive in terms of learning beyond the classroom.
- 2-Critical thinking makes students more active, and later in their lives, this may help them become lifelong learners in the areas they studied
- 3-Critical thinking can help students participate more in solving social issues

2.3Collaboration

Collaboration is generally defined as "the process of working with someone to produce something" ("Macmillan Dictionary | Free English Dictionary and Thesaurus", 2022). In language education settings, the term refers to the skill that a language learner is expected to develop while working together with his/her peers in order to achieve learning goals. The learner is typically required to be able to provide the necessary contribution in a team, accept responsibility, and value others.

Collaboration is seen as an indispensable part of education nowadays. As Johnson and Johnson (2008) rightly hold that it is hard to find an instructional method, a course book or learning material that does not include cooperative learning. The same can be said for language teaching and learning. Most of the latest language teaching approaches and methods include and encourage collaborative learning among students (Larsen-Free-Man & Anderson, 2011). Famous language teaching methods and techniques, such as Task-based Teaching and Learning, Communicative Language Teaching, Project-based Learning, to name just a few all have student-student collaboration as a crucial learning interaction in their lesson planning. In addition, collaboration and cooperative learning is supported by important learning theories. For instance, according to Vygotsky's Socio-cultural Theory, learning takes place best in social interaction contexts, i.e. in collaboration with others, and that collaboration is vital in the process of learning (Vygotsky, 1978, as cited in Farr& Murray 2016). Or it's The ability to work together, learn from one another and help to teach each other is a very important 21st century skill. By utilizing social networking kills and

encouraging collaboration this allows students to show empathy to others and work together in diverse environments (Fullan, 2013). Or is an umbrella term for a variety of educational approaches. Involving joint intellectual effort by students, or students and teachers together usually students are working in groups of two or more, mutually searching for understanding, solutions, or meanings, or creating a product. And one of the experts who has extensively discussed collaboration is Dr. Amy Edmondson. She is a renowned organizational psychologist and professor at Harvard Business School. Dr. Edmondson emphasizes the importance of collaboration in creating high-performing teams and organizations. She believes that when individuals work together effectively, they can achieve remarkable results. One example she often mentions is the concept of psychological safety, where team members feel comfortable taking risks, expressing their ideas, and learning from their mistakes without fear of judgment or negative consequences. By fostering a culture of collaboration and psychological safety, organizations can harness the collective intelligence and creativity of their teams. This leads to better problem-solving, innovation, and overall performance.

2.3.1The benefits of collaboration for learners

There are numerous benefits from applying collaborative skills and learning in the language education. Well-known learning theories, for instance, point to the importance of student collaboration in the language learning process. As mentioned earlier, Sociocultural Theory stresses the key role of social interaction in learning. Cooperative learning is also emphasized in the Social Interdependence Theory (Johnson & Johnson, 2008). According to this theory social interdependence occurs when each person's outcome is impacted by the other members in a group who share the same aim. That is to say, the learning that takes place during collaborative activities is a result of every student's effort and contribution in the group. This suggests that learning outcomes from group work are higher and better .than individual work

In collaborative learning, besides achieving good learning outcomes, students also have the opportunity to develop important social skills; in addition, working and learning in groups make them more aware of how effective group and collaborative work can be (Larsen-Freeman & Anderson, 2011). This may help students grow into individuals who are well-prepared for the workplaces which require team building and team work. Furthermore, Fathman & Kessler (1993)they made report on studies which indicate that collaborative learning makes learners (1) more tolerant towards learners of other ethnicities, (2) more caring for others (3) better at conflict resolutions etc.

2.4Communication and its benefits

Of all the 21st century skills, communication is the most common skill in language teaching and learning. This is because communication is the central focus of most of the teaching and learning content. Hence, this skill is both encountered and practiced much more in an English class than the other skills; that is, critical thinking, collaboration, or creativity. Most of language teaching approaches and methods that have emerged since the last century stress that communication is their main focus, especially the methods that have emerged from the Communicative Approach, such as Communicative Language Teaching and Task-Based Language Teaching. In these methods, communication is the basis from which language lesson should be developed (Larsen-Freeman & Anderson, 2011). For younger generations communication is seen as one of the essential skills in a developing world and in the time of globalization. It is considered to play a vital role in pursuing lifelong learning, an important self-development pursuit for any individual who wants to be competitive and up to date with new trends in the profession. In addition, communication is regarded as a necessary skill in the new age as the new generations are constantly becoming part of a growing community (Ananiadou & Claro, 2009). Communicative skills have also become important as we are witnessing an enormous growth and a rapid development of Information and Communication Technologies (ICT). Digital tools, online platforms, online media, social networks, and so on, have become the new means of mass communication. Students are required to learn and adapt to the online communication as well as acquire digital literacy which generally means: being able to find and evaluate information online; being able to understand and interpret information from the new media and sources on internet; and being able to communicate information online. The learning of this new mode of communication ensures students prepare for the workplace and life of the 21st century. Students benefit enormously from engaging in communication and acquiring communicative competences. First of all, in an EFL context, communication helps learners be-come fluent in the foreign language in all skills, which includes listening, reading, writing and speaking. In a wider educational perspective, communication is a key factor which determines their academic success and achievement, as well as guarantees lifelong learning, and hence, more opportunities for continuous professional development in their career.

2.5Creativity

Creativity is another key competence that has enormous relevance in today's world. The concept of creative thinking and innovation has gained a considerable momentum in almost all spheres of life in the last decades and has become a focus of many governments and the business world (Jones & Richards, 2016). Creativity is considered to be a crucial skill in the workplace of the new century taking into consideration the rapid economic development and technology advancement in the world. Innovation has become a primary goal for many companies, governments, educational institutions, world organizations etc.. Creativity refer to "ability or power to create with originality self expression and imagination" (Collins and O Brien, 2011,p 110). The increasing interest in creativity as a skill has resulted in a shift on how education considers the competence and to the degree it is included in the curriculum. Schools and publishing houses are gradually incorporating creative thinking in the teaching and learning content so as to prepare students for a more

creative workplace and society. This is taking place at all levels of education, from early to higher education levels. Educational institutions are increasingly providing the necessary professional development for teachers in order to ensure creativity is well understood and successfully implemented in the classroom. Or in another way Creativity thinking in study means using your imagination and thinking in unique and innovative ways to learn and understand information. It's about being open-minded, exploring different approaches, and finding creative solutions to problems. It can involve using visual aids, technology, collaboration, and embracing different perspectives to make your learning experience more engaging and effective. So, basically, it's about thinking outside the box and making studying more fun and exciting.

2.5.1The benefits of creativity for learners

Referring to literature, Hadfield and Hadfield (2015) discuss several benefits of using creativity with language learners. The first is that learners engaging in creative activities and tasks are more motivated and this, in turn, results in more positive outcomes. Creativity and creative tasks help learners become more risk-takers, and this makes them do more than what their real linguistic abilities are. In addition, the more cognitive effort and the deeper the language is processed during creative activities, the more language becomes stored and memorable for the learners , creative thinking can also trigger important and far-reaching changes in learners. It is considered to bring about significant change in learners' abilities to make important choices and take responsibility of their choices, and this can help empower them as individuals as well as result in better self-confidence and self-esteem (Jones & Richards, 2016), and greater autonomy in communication (Ollerhead & Burns, 2016). These can serve students both in short-term perspective, by making them more successful in the learning process, as well as in long-term perspective by helping them become more productive as individuals, employees and citizens.

Section three

Practice example for four skills

:3.1Critical thinking

Encouraging students to think critically means encouraging them to question everything. If you ask students questions such as "Why did you write that?" "What makes you say that?" or "How would you prove that?" you encourage them to think critically.

Asking questions helps students become better thinkers, Questions allow students to explore issues and come up with answers themselves. Asking questions encourages students to think deeply. So using real world examples are helpful for teaching students how to think, using real world examples allows students to apply concepts to situations outside of school.

For example, if you teach students how to identify logical fallacies, you can show them how to recognize these errors in arguments. Showing students how to identify logical fallacy gives them practice identifying common mistakes made by others.

Willingham, D. T. (2019). How to Teach Critical Thinking. Education: Future Frontiers.

ii.. classroom projects

Another example is, Critical thinking, communication, collaboration, and creativity are all essential Skills that can be integrated in the classroom. In this example that emphasizes critical thinking Imagine you're in a science class and your teacher assigns a project on climate change. The goal is to analyze the causes, impacts, and potential solutions to this global issue. Here's how critical thinking, communication, collaboration, and creativity can be utilized First; you and your classmates engage in critical thinking by conducting research from reliable sources. You analyze data, evaluate different perspectives, and identify the underlying factors contributing to climate change. Next you communicate and collaborate with your peers to discuss your findings. Through group discussions, you share your insights, ask thought-provoking questions, and challenge each other's ideas. This fosters a deeper understanding of the topic and encourages critical thinking to showcase your understanding creatively, you could develop a multimedia presentation, combining visuals, audio, and Interactive elements. This allows you to present your research in an engaging and impactful way, demonstrating your critical thinking skills. During the presentation, you encourage your classmates to think critically by asking them questions that prompt them to analyze the data, consider alternative solutions, and evaluate the potential impact of different strategies.

3.2 Collaboration

The example of collaboration: Your teacher assigns a group project where each group is responsible for researching and presenting on a different planet in our solar system. Instead of working individually, you and your classmates collaborate by dividing the research tasks among yourselves. You each take on a specific planet and gather information about its characteristics, atmosphere, and any interesting facts. Throughout the project, you regularly communicate and share your findings with your group members. By working together, you benefit from each other's knowledge and perspectives, creating a more comprehensive and well-rounded project. This example demonstrates how Collaboration in the classroom promotes teamwork, communication, and the exchange of ideas. It allows you to learn from your peers, develop important social skills, and produce high- quality work as a collective effort another example, to highlights collaboration as the main point while incorporating communication, creativity, and critical thinking in a classroom setting.

Imagine you're part of a science class project where the goal is to design and build a sustainable model city.

i. Using four skills in a group assigned

Here's how you can utilize collaboration, communication, creativity, and critical thinking: First, the class is divided into small groups, and each group is assigned a specific aspect of the city to focus on, such as energy, transportation, or waste management. Within your group, you collaborate by sharing ideas and pooling your collective knowledge.

ii. Making Foster effect to your group

To foster effective communication, your group holds regular meetings to discuss progress, brainstorm ideas, and assign tasks. Through open and respectful communication, you ensure that everyone's ideas and perspectives are heard, and you can collectively make informed decisions. As you work on your assigned aspect of the city, you apply critical thinking and creativity. For example, if your group is responsible for energy you can brainstorm innovative and sustainable energy sources, such as solar panels or wind turbines. By thinking critically and creatively, you can come up with unique solutions that address the needs of the city while considering environmental impact. Throughout the project, collaboration remains the main focus. You and your group members actively collaborate by sharing resources, providing feedback, and supporting one another. By leveraging each other's strengths and expertise, you can create a comprehensive and cohesive model city. When the project is complete, each group presents their aspect of the city to the class. Through effective collaboration, you and your group members seamlessly integrate your work, demonstrating how your individual contributions come together to form a sustainable and functional city. By emphasizing collaboration as the main point while incorporating communication, creativity, and critical thinking, you create a classroom environment that encourages teamwork, problem-solving, and the development of innovative ideas. For teaching and for class area for sure we need Communication, which is actively listening to decipher meanings, intentions, attitudes, etc. Receiving and transmitting messages using any available resources Exchanging knowledge or opinions, we can say the flow and exchange of information from one place, person or group to another. To clarify more, imagine you're part of a language learning group that meets regularly to practice and improve your language skills Collaboration would be a key aspect of your language learning journey.

First, you would collaborate with your language learning group members to set goals and establish a shared learning plan. Together, you would discuss your individual language learning needs and aspirations, and then collectively decide on specific objectives and strategies to achieve them ,This collaborative approach ensures that everyone's input is valued and that the learning process is tailored to the group's needs .During your language learning sessions, you would engage in collaborative activities that promote active participation and interaction. For example, you might engage in group discussions, role playing scenarios, or language games. These Activities provide opportunities for you to practice speaking, listening, and comprehension skills in a supportive and collaborative

environment. By working together, you can provide feedback, share insights, and learn from one another's experience.

3.3Communication

For example, in a classroom setting, a teacher might engage in effective communication by using clear and concise language, actively listening to students, and encouraging open dialogue. By creating an environment that promotes effective communication, Students can feel comfortable asking questions, expressing their thoughts, and engaging in meaningful discussion. Dr. Vygotsky's work highlights the power of communication in Facilitating learning and creating a positive educational Experience. It's fascinating to see how effective communication can enhance the teaching and learning process for example you're in a history class and your teacher assigns a debate on a historical topic. You and your classmates are divided into two groups, each representing a different perspective on a historical Event. You're tasked with researching and preparing arguments to support your assigned viewpoint. In order to effectively communicate your ideas, you engage in discussions with your group members, sharing information, brainstorming, and refining your arguments. During the debate, you actively listen to your classmates' arguments, respond with counterpoints. And engage in respectful dialogue. Through effective Communication, you not only express your own ideas but also understand and consider different perspectives. This fosters a deeper understanding of the topic and encourages critical thinking. This example highlights how communication in the classroom promotes active participation, collaboration, and the exchange of ideas. It allows you to express your thoughts clearly, listen attentively, and engage in meaningful discussions that enhance your learning experience. Example that highlights communication as the main point while incorporating collaboration, creativity, and critical thinking in a classroom setting. Imagine you're part of an English literature class, and the teacher assigns a group project to analyze and present a famous novel. Here's how you can utilize communication, collaboration, creativity, and critical thinking: First, the class is divided into small groups, and each group is assigned a different novel to study. Within your group, you collaborate by discussing the novel, sharing insights, and brainstorming ideas for your presentation. To enhance communication, your group holds regular meetings to discuss the plot, themes, and characters of the novel. Through active listening and effective communication, you ensure that everyone's thoughts and interpretations are considered, fostering a deeper understanding of the text. As you work on your presentation, you apply critical thinking and creativity. For example, you can come up with innovative ways to visually represent key scenes or create engaging activities to involve the class in the discussion. By thinking critically and creatively, you can captivate your classmates' attention and make the presentation more memorable. Throughout the project, communication remains the main focus. You and your group members actively communicate by sharing research findings, collaborating on the presentation structure, and providing constructive feedback to improve each other's ideas. By valuing open and respectful communication, you create an environment that encourages collaboration and the exchange of diverse perspectives. .When it's time to present, your group effectively communicates the main themes character analysis, and significant literary elements of the novel. Through clear and

engaging communication, you captivate the class's attention and facilitate a meaningful discussion. By emphasizing communication as the main point while incorporating collaboration, creativity, and critical thinking, you create a classroom environment that nurtures effective expression, active listening, and the exploration of different viewpoints.

3.4Creativity

Imagine you're part of a group project in your literature class. The assignment is to create a modern adaptation of a classic novel. Here's how you can utilize creativity, communication, and collaboration First, you and your group brainstorm ideas together. Through open communication, you share your creative thoughts and bounce ideas off each other. This collaborative process allows you to build upon each other's ideas and come up with a Unique and innovative adaptation. Next, you divide tasks among the group members. Everyone brings their creative skills and expertise to the table. One person might focus on writing the script, while others work on set design, costumes, or promotional materials. By collaborating and assigning specific roles, you ensure that each aspect of the project receives creative attention. As you work on your assigned tasks, you apply critical thinking to make creative decisions. You analyze the themes, characters, and settings of the classic novel and find ways to creatively reinterpret them in a modern context. This critical thinking process helps you infuse your adaptation with fresh and imaginative ideas. Throughout the project, effective communication is Key. You regularly meet with your group to discuss progress, provide feedback, and address any challenges. Clear and open communication ensures that everyone is on the same page, allowing the creative vision to come to life. Finally, you present your modern adaptation to the class. Through effective communication, you explain the creative choices you made, highlighting how you incorporated elements of the classic novel while adding your unique twist. This presentation allows you to showcase your creative thinking and engage with your classmates. Ability By emphasizing creativity while utilizing communication and collaboration in this example

Section four

4.1Conclusion

Having 21st-century skills in the classroom is essential for student success. Building these skills into their lessons is the responsibility of all educators who wish to prepare their students for life outside of school adequately.

Not only teaching 21st-century skills provide students with great life and career opportunities, but it gives them the tools necessary to become more productive citizens of the world. Adding activities that increase collaboration, critical thinking, and organizational and communication skills will leave a lasting impression on students as they progress in their educational pursuits. As teachers continue to strive to be education leaders, embracing 21st-century learning should be an integral part of your class - so get started today certainly! When integrating 21st-century skills into language teaching, focusing on four key skills - critical thinking, creativity, communication, and collaboration - can effectively enrich the learning experience and prepare students for the challenges of the modern world. Here are some tailored suggestions for incorporating these skills into language teaching;

- 1-Encourage students to analyze and evaluate language texts critically by asking questions that stimulate higher-order thinking, such as identifying underlying assumptions, evaluating evidence, and drawing conclusions.
- 2-Incorporate activities that challenge students to solve language- related problems creatively, such as interpreting nuances in language use, inferring meaning from context, or analyzing rhetorical strategies in writing.
- 3-Engage students in debates, discussions, and role plays that require them to think critically, express opinions clearly, and support arguments with evidence.

4.2 suggestion and recommendation

Learning in 21stcentury skills can be enhanced through collaborative Projects, Technology integration, authentic tasks, debates, global connection, reflection, self-assessment, problem- based learning, and inquiry-based learning.

These strategies foster creativity, critical thinking, and digital literacy in language learning activities, while promoting adaptability, communication, and critical thinking.

By fostering global awareness, empathy, and cultural competence, students can prepare for success in a rapidly evolving global society.

The

recommendations include fostering critical thinking, creativity, collaboration, and authentic communication. Critical thinking involves analyzing and evaluating information,, while creativity encourages expression through writing, speaking, and multimedia presentation. Collaboration fosters communication, teamwork, and interpersonal skills. Group projects, peer feedback, and collaborative learning activities are recommended. Authentic communication is emphasized through real life language interaction, such as discussions, debates, role plays, and simulation. These recommendations aim to prepare students for the demands of a digital, interconnected world and prepare them for effective communication in a digital world.

References

-Ann K. Fathman and Carolyn Kessler (1992) Cooperative Language Learning in School Contexts.

Akhmad Habibi

-,2015

Teachers of English for Young Learners: An Analysis on Their English Proficiency and Profile

- AsMcCommas (2014.P 26)21century skill
- Black, R. (2009). English-Language learners, fan communities, and 21st-Century skills. ‎Journal of adolescent and adult literacy, 52(8), 688-697.â
- **Betül** Czerkawski and Margherita Berti (2020) Language Learning in the 21st Century: Current Status and Future Directions.
- -Bybee, R. W., & Fuchs, B. (2006). Preparing the 21st century workforce: A new reform in science and technology education. Journal of Research in Science Teaching, 43(4), 349-352
- Brian North(2016.34_36) ENRICHING 21ST-CENTURY LANGUAGE EDUCATION
- -Diana Barseghyan, Anna Gevorgyan(2022.1_3)Integrating 21st Century 4c Skills In An Armenian Ffl Classroom
- -Diane Larsen-Freeman and Marti Anderson 2011Techniques & Principles in Language Teaching
- Emin idrizi (2023.148_153)The 21st Century Skills and Language Education
- Fiona Farr and Liam Murray, (2016) The Routledge Handbook of Language Learning and Technology
- -Hamid Ashraf(2017.35.36) INTEGRATING 21st CENTURY SKILLS INTO TEACHING ENGLISH: INVESTIGATING ITS EFFECT ON LISTENING AND SPEAKING SKILLS
- -Huda M. Alhothali (2021.107_110)INCLUSION OF 21st CENTURY SKILLS IN TEACHER PREPARATION PROGRAMS IN THE LIGHT OF GLOBAL EXPERTISE
- Halverson (2018.2002)st Century Skills and the "4Cs" in the English Language Classroom
- -Hadfield(2015)Language Learning in the 21st Century: Current Status and Future Directions
- -Jones & Richards, 2016)Creativity in Language Teaching: Perspectives From Research and "Practice
- Keith Johnson (1996) Language Teaching and Skill Learning
- -Ken kay(2010.8) 21ST CENTURY KNOWLEDGE AND SKILLS IN EDUCATOR PREPARATION

- -Kessler, G. (2018). Technology and the Future of Language Teaching.
- -Katerina Ananiadou and Magdalean Claro in 2009. 21st Century Skills and Competences for "New Millennium Learners in OECD Countries"
- -Marija Stevkovska, Emin Idrizi, and Igballe Miftari-Fetishi (1016)Contemporary Issues in Language Teaching
- -Nissim et al.(2016, p.29)"Integrating 21st Century Skills into Teaching English: Investigating Its Effect on Listening and Speaking Skills
- -Sebastianus Menggo, Sabina Ndiung, & Hendrikus Midun(2022.15)Integrating 21st-century skills in English material development: What do college students really need?
- -Sarah P. Robinson (2010.8) 21ST CENTURY KNOWLEDGE AND SKILLS IN EDUCATOR PREPARATION
- -Siti Kustini(2020.672)Moving towards 21st Century English Language TeachingDeveloping ESP multiliteracies-based materials
- -Saavedra, A., & Opfer, V. (2012). Teaching and Learning 21st Century
- -Schmidt (2010) (p.147)"Attention, Awareness, and Individual Differences in Language "Learning
- -Tomlinson & Masuhara (2013.10) The 21st Century Skills and Language Education
- -Willingham, D.T. (2019). How to teach critical thinking . Education: future Frontiers.
- -Vladislav Ilin(2020) Integrating 21st-century skills into the English curriculum: a low tech, budget-friendly methodology
- -ygotsky's work from (1978) Language Learning in the 21st Century: Current Status and Future Directions

Chung (2013) "Revisiting Second Language Vocabulary Teaching: Insights from Hong Kong "In-Service Teachers